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SEDGWICK COUNTY, KANSAS 
DIVISION OF FINANCE 
Purchasing Department 

525 N. Main, Suite 823 ~ Wichita, KS  67203 
Phone: 316 660-7255    Fax: 316 383-7055 

    www.sedgwickcounty.org/finance/purchasing.asp 

ADDENDUM 1 
RFP #21-0054 

MEDICAL SERVICES - CORRECTIONS 

October 4, 2021 

The following is to ensure that proposers have complete information prior to submitting a proposal response. 
Here are clarifications regarding our request. 

Questions and/or statements of clarification are in bold font, and answers to specific questions are italicized. 

1. Is there more than one (1) resident per sleeping quarters at the Juvenile Detention Facility
(JDF)?
Answer: JDF has rooms that have the capability to hold two (2) youth, but at this time youth are only 
sleeping one (1) per room. Youth do not have roommates at this time.

2. How old is this building (JDF)?

Answer: The building was built in 2006. It is about fifteen years old.

3. What are the most common needs for medical services at this location (JDF)?
Answer: There are occasional injuries that can happen in the gym, due to the fact that youth are 
actively participating in physical activates. Testing for STDs is also a common request. Admissions 
physicals, management of chronic and emergency needs, medication management, TB screening, 
COVID-19 protocols and care.

4. Are meals to be provided to staff (JDF)?

Answer: Staff who are serving as part of the daily ratio can eat with the residents one meal per shift, 

support staff or contracted staff can purchase a punch card for meals.

http://www.sedgwickcounty.org/finance/purchasing.asp
http://www.sedgwickcounty.org/finance/purchasing.asp
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5. Are there any preferences as far as communication between staff (JDF)?
Answer: Detention facility staff carry a radio to communicate with one another. Medical staff will be 
provided with a radio, it is always a good idea to keep the radio with you in order to be aware of what 
is going on in the building. For need-to know communication related to medical needs, situations etc. 
SCDOC request a distribution list be set up and information be shared to designated JDF staff via 
email.

6. Are there any shared spaces with other entities (JDF)?

Answer: SCDOC does have shared space with EmberHope.

7. How many exam rooms are there at JDF?

Answer: There are three (3) exam rooms total, one (1) is being utilized by EmberHope.

8. Is the medical equipment county owned?

Answer: The larger equipment is county owned.

9. Will the Juvenile Intake and Assessment Center (JIAC) require medical screenings?

Answer: Medical services will be requested as needed to provide medical clearance and assessments.

10. Where will full screenings need to take place (JIAC)?

Answer: If needed, youth at JIAC are screened at JIAC.

11. What is the current procedure for COVID-19 screenings (JIAC)?

Answer: The client’s temperature is taken, SCDOC staff ask questions about symptoms, close contact 

with exposed or suspected, and travel.

12. Will clients from Juvenile Residential Facility (JRF) ever need to be taken to JDF for 

assessment?Answer: No, JRF has an exam room available for medical assessments.

13. If a client runs away, do we need to chase them (JRF)?

Answer: No, standard procedure is JRF staff make a report, call 911, and report it.

14. What is the average stay of a client for Adult Residential Facility/Work Release (ARES/WR)?

Answer: The average stay is four (4) months.

15. Are Adult Residential/Work Release clients responsible for the cost of any ER visits?

Answer: Yes.
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16. Will the awarded vendor be in charge of dispensing medications (ARES/WR)?

Answer: Yes.

17. Have there been any issues with hospitals over non-payment (ARES/WR)?

Answer: No.

18. If the client needs to go to the hospital, will an ambulance transport (ARES/WR)?

Answer: Depending on the issue, an ambulance will be called or staff will also transport if
appropriate. SCDOC does encourage our clients to utilize local health clinics.

19. Is there an option in the RFP for medical and mental health?

Answer: Yes.

20. Is COMCARE on site?

Answer:

ARES/WR: No, Crisis currently transports clients as needed.

JDF & JRF: Currently has four (4) licensed masters’ level licensed social work mental health staff who
provide on the spot crisis management, assessment, situational counseling, suicide prevention and
intervention, and work with providers if a youth needs screened for acute inpatient treatment.

21. What is the annual cost of the current contract for medical services for the juvenile facilities?

Answer: $537,385.20

22. Please provide a copy of the current contract for medical services for the juvenile facilities.

Answer: Attached.

23. Please provide the current medical staffing plan for the juvenile facilities.

Answer: Included in Second Amendment to Agreement for Juvenile Health Care Services Exhibit B
attached.

24. Please provide the current mental health staffing plan for the juvenile facilities.

Answer: Mental Health Services is currently provided internally by the Department of Corrections.
Staffing consists of three (3) Senior Social Workers, one (1) Case Manager II, and one (1) Corrections
Program Manager. Currently all staff work first shift. Senior Social Workers are on-call during
evenings and weekends, on a rotating basis. One (1) staff person is here until 7pm three (3) days a
week.



4 

25. Please confirm that the contractor will be responsible for payment of the costs for any off-site
services not covered by the parents’/guardians’ private insurance.

Answer:

Juvenile Detention Facility: the contractor will be responsible for payment of cost for any off-site
services not covered under the contract with medical provider. Please see section 9.1.

Juvenile Residential Facility: the contractor will be responsible for payment of cost for any off-site
services not covered under the medical contract or third party insurance. Please see section 9.1.

26. What was the total cost for off-site services for which the contractor has been responsible for each
of the last three (3) fiscal years?

Answer: This information is tracked by calendar year. The following are the total amounts:
2019: $4,201.00
2020: $3,304.75
2021: $1,155.00 (total year to date)

27. What was the total cost for pharmaceuticals for the juveniles for each of the last three (3) fiscal
years?

Answer: This information is tracked by calendar year. The following are the total amounts:
2019: $23,270.00
2020: $28,917.00
2021: $7,016.00 (total year to date)

28. We understand that correctional officers conduct the initial health screening for juveniles
entering these facilities and that medical staff must then review the screening and conduct the
initial health assessment. Would the SCDOC like medical staff to conduct the initial health
screening also?

Answer: Not at this time.

29. For the Adult Residential/Work Release proposal, would the county like medical staff to conduct
the initial health screening in addition to the review of intake paperwork and the initial health
assessment?

Answer: Yes.

30. Please confirm that the adult residents are totally responsible for the cost of off-site services and
that the contractor will have no responsibility for payment of these services.

Answer: Contractor will not be responsible for off-site services cost. Residents will be responsible for
any off-site cost.
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31. Please confirm that the adult residents are responsible for the purchase of their own prescription
and over-the counter pharmaceuticals and that the contractor will have no responsibility for
purchasing pharmaceuticals.

Answer: Please provide option for review that includes cost of pharmaceutical services along with
medical services.

32. Does the SCDOC currently have any in-house dialysis equipment in the juvenile facilities?

Answer: There is currently no in-house dialysis equipment at the Juvenile Detention Facility.

33. Are current dialysis services for juveniles conducted through a mobile service or are the residents
transported to an off-site dialysis provider?

Answer: There has been no need for dialysis services at the Juvenile Detention Facility or Juvenile
Residential Facility.

34. What is the average number of dialysis clients in the juvenile facilities each year?

Answer: Zero.

35. Are adult offenders that need dialysis services admitted to the Adult Residential/Work Release
Program? If so, is the offender responsible for the cost of his/her own dialysis?

Answer: Clients would need to access dialysis services in the community.

36. What is the current monthly fee for vehicle/employee parking in the county’s parking garage?

All SCDOC buildings have available parking that will not require parking garage cost.

37. Page 37, #5.10.3 – Please confirm that this requirement appears to be a carryover from the
SCADLF RFP and is an error. It would be very costly and unnecessary for a Medical Director
and both a full-time HSA and DON to be on-site on a full-time basis for the juvenile facilities
considering the size of the population.

Answer: This was a carryover, sorry for the confusion. Please refer to section 5.0B a. for staffing level
needs.

38. Page 34, #5.9.1 – The RFP is not requesting an electronic medical record for the juvenile facilities
and specified that paper files will be used. If the same vendor is also awarded the contract for the
SCALDF, will the SCDOC want to be included in the same electronic medical records system for
the juvenile and adult facilities? Or – is the SCDOC completely against the use of electronic
medical records for these facilities?

Answer: SCDOC is not interested in an electronic medical record system at this time.

39. Does the juvenile detention facility have restrictive or disciplinary housing?

Answer: Residents may be serving disciplinary room time, but this is typically within the living units
and not a separate area. We do not have a separate living area designated for disciplinary housing.
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40. Does the SCDOC want the contractor to provide initial health screenings/assessments and TB 
tests to new hires? If so, what is the annual average number of new hires?
Answer: Yes. SCDOC would like to provide a health screening/assessment and TB tests to all new hires 
that will be working in a 24-hour facility. In 2020, 32 new hires required a health screening/assessment 
and TB test.

41. Approximately how many SCDOC corrections staff will need to be tested annually for TB?

Answer: In 2020, 32 new hires required a TB test.

42. Page 61, #9.1 – Is the outside medical cap of $35,000.00 only for off-site services? Please refer to 
section 9.1. Is this an aggregate cap for all juvenile residents or per individual resident?
Answer: This is an aggregate cap for all juveniles at the Juvenile Detention Facility and Juvenile 
Residential Facility.

43. Please explain the meaning of “DBE (% & $)” on each cost proposal sheet.

Answer: DBE stands for Disadvantaged Business Entity. Please identify the percent and dollar amount 

paid (% & $) to all subcontractors that qualify as a DBE.

44. Will the SCDOC provide internet access to the contractor? If so, who is the internet provider and 

what bandwidth are they providing?

Answer: The internet provider is ½ COX and ½ Lumen 1GB each.

45. Please confirm that the SCDOC/county is responsible for providing office equipment for medical 
staff including computers, printers, copiers, scanners, fax, etc. If so, will the computers be desktop 
style, laptops, or both?
Answer: Yes. The county provides office equipment for medical staff. Currently staff utilize desktop 
style computers.

46. Please provide an inventory of the current office equipment that will be available for the 
contractor’s use and its current condition.
Answer:
All equipment is in good working condition.

1. One (1) paper shredder.
2. One (1) Canon Copier.
3. Three (3) monitors.
4. Three (3) computer towers.
5. Four (4) task chairs.

47. Will the county provide IT support for computer and office equipment and be responsible for 

repair/replacement of this equipment?

Answer: Yes.
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48. Will the county purchase additional office equipment needed for any additional staff within the 
contractor’s staffing plan?  
 
Answer: The county will utilize the equipment that is currently available. Currently all available 
workspaces has office equipment provided.  
 

49. Is there a wireless network in the juvenile and adult facilities? If so, does it extend to the medical 
areas and into living units?  
 
Answer: SCDOC does have a wireless network that extends to the Medical Area and the living units.   

 
50. Can the prospective RFP parties receive a copy &/or pertinent portions of the current contract 

that cover services currently being provided to the Juvenile Detention Center, Juvenile Intake 
and Assessment Center and the Adult Residential Center?  
 
Answer: The contract is attached.  
 

51. Can the prospective RFP parties receive a copy of the current annual budget and expenses for the 
Adult Residential Center? 
 
Answer: The contract is attached. 
 

52. Background Screening:  

a. What is the process for, and requirements of, background screening of prospective contractor 
staff prior to being allowed on-site?  
Answer: 
First Step: Contractor will need to send the following paperwork to SCDOC Personnel for initial 
background check:  

Kansas Department of Children and Families Authorization for background check (FCL 002) 

SCDOC Form 1.304.4 Authorization to Release Information 

SCDOC Disclosure of PREA Employment Standards Violation form 1.301.6.  

Second Step: Contractor will need to arrange for new hires to complete fingerprints with SCDOC 
Personnel. Once all background checks are returned the new hires can be allowed on site and start 
working. 

 b. How long does the background screening process take?  
Answer: Background checks can take between 2-4 weeks to complete.  
 

 c. Will staff be allowed on-site to train while a background check is being conducted? 
  

Answer: No, staff will not be allowed in licensed facilities until all background checks have been 
completed.  
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53. Mental Health: Optional Services #3 – Adult Residential and Work Release Program  
a. What are the options for housing suicidal patients in Adult Residential and Work Release 
Programs?  
Answer: Adult Residential/Work Release does not currently have separate housing for suicidal clients. 
Currently, COMCARE Community Crisis Center is called to assess whether a client can remain at 
ARES/WR, or if more intensive services should be arranged.  
 
b. What are Sedgwick County Department of Corrections’ expectation on how many and what 
type of group mental health services should be offered?  

 

Answer: The number of group sessions and content of mental health groups would be left up to the 
provider to determine.  
 
c. What are Sedgwick County Department of Corrections required educational groups?  
 

Answer: SCDOC would like the contractor to provide at least two (2) educational trainings annually 
for staff. The content of the training will be developed by SCDOC and the contractor but should focus 
on expanding the understanding of mental health. The topics may include: suicidal prevention, signs 
and symptoms of mental health, etc. 

 
Submittals are due NO LATER THAN 1:45 pm, CDT, Tuesday, November 2, 2021. Late proposals will not 
be accepted and will not be considered for award recommendation. 
 
PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM ON THE PROPOSAL RESPONSE 
PAGE. 
 
 
 
 
Joseph Thomas, CPSM, C.P.M. 
Purchasing Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JT/lj 
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